
Adult Commissioning Committee  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Adult Commissioning Committee to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 
Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 14 July 2021 
 
TIME:  2.00 pm 
 
VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

1   Welcome and Introductions  
 

 

2   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest  
 

 

 ITEMS FOR DECISION  
 

 

4   Draft Annual Plan for Integrated Commissioning 2021/22 - Karen 
Proctor / Emma Reid  
 

(Pages 1 - 26) 

 ITEMS FOR ASSURANCE  
 

 

5   Finance Report - David Warhurst  
 

(Pages 27 - 38) 

 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION  
 

 

6   Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby / Judd Skelton  
 

(Pages 39 - 48) 

7   Any Other Business  
 

 

8   Dates of Future Meetings  
 

 Wednesday 09 June at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 14 July at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 08 September at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 13 October at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 10 November at 14:00;  

 

Public Document Pack



 

 Wednesday 12 January 2022 at 14:00;  

 Tuesday 01 February 2022 at 14:00;  

 Wednesday 09 March 2022 at 14:00. 
 
 
Contact Officer:   
Carol Eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

ADULTS COMMISSIONING COMMITTEE 
14 JULY 2021 
AGENDA ITEM 4: Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 
 
Item for: Decision  
 

Report of: Joint Head of Planning and Performance  

Date of Paper: 30 June 2021 

In case of query, please contact: Emma Reid 
0161 793 3501  
Emma.Reid@salford.gov.uk  

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research    

Adult Services   

Children’s and Maternity Services   

All Age Mental Health   

Primary Care   

Enabling Transformation   

Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality   

Reducing Health Inequalities   

Skills and Education (A Learning City)   

Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    
This report presents Salford’s Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 for approval. 
 
A copy of the annual plan (including all sections listed below) is included at Appendix 1 for 
approval.  It is not anticipated that there will be any significant changes to this plan.  
However, it should be noted that in this time of ongoing uncertainty, this annual plan, even 
more than in other years, will remain a dynamic document which will be updated as required 
throughout the year. 
 
As in previous years, Health and Care Commissioning Committee members were asked to 
delegate approval of the final plan as follows: 

 Adults Commissioning Committee – Adults Plan 

 Children’s Commissioning Committee – Children’s and Maternity Plan 

 Primary Care Commissioning Committee – Primary Care Plan 

 CCG Executive Team – Quality, safety, research and innovation and Enablers 
sections of the plan. 

 
Adults Commissioning Committee Members are now asked to approve the actions outlined 
in the Adult Services section of Appendix 1 (pages 3-7). 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Emma.Reid@salford.gov.uk
https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

 
Strategic planning is the vital to ensure we 
continue to plan for the future needs of our 
population.  The annual plan for integrated 
commissioning in Salford details the clear 
contribution the CCG and City Council make 
to resident health and wellbeing, reducing 
health inequalities and promoting inclusion. 
 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

As above. 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

No risks to consider. 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

No. 
 
The full year draft plan for the Integrated 
Fund was previously discussed and amended 
at the Health and Care Commissioning Board 
prior to the confirmation of NHS 
allocations.  This indicated that the forecast 
deficit in the fund would be approximately 
£6m. The partners agreed to move forward 
with the plan whilst identifying opportunities 
to mitigate this level of risk.  

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

None. Information update only. 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

All CCG and City Council service groups. 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? No 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? No 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

As part of planning process 

Page 2



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? 

Delivery of changes to services within annual 
plans are subject to equality impact 
assessments as required. 

Has legal advice been obtained? No. 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Reviewed by the CCG Executive Team and 
Integrated Leadership Team. 

Reviewed by Health and Care 
Commissioning Board 16/06/2021 – 
delegated authority for approval agreed (to 
joint committees) 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 

involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 3



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   

This report presents Salford’s Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 for 
information and assurance;  it outlines the high level priorities for each of the strategic 
programme areas from 1st April 2021 until 31st March 2022 to ensure the CCG and City 
Council play a leading role in delivering the Salford Locality Plan for local people.   
 
There are six strategic programme areas outlined in the plan; these include: 
 

 Children’s and maternity services 

 Adults Services 

 All Age Mental Health 

 Primary Care 

 Quality, safety, innovation, and research 

 Enabling transformation 
 
A copy of the annual plan (including all sections listed above) is included at Appendix 1.  
It is not anticipated that there will be any significant changes to this plan.  However, it 
should be noted that in this time of ongoing uncertainty, this annual plan, even more than 
in other years, will remain a dynamic document which will be updated as required 
throughout the year. 
 
As in previous years, Health and Care Commissioning Committee members were asked to 
delegate approval of the final plan as follows: 

 Adults Commissioning Committee – Adult Services Plan 

 Children’s Commissioning Committee – Children’s and Maternity Plan 

 Primary Care Commissioning Committee – Primary Care Plan 

 CCG Executive Team – Quality, safety, research and innovation and Enablers 
sections of the plan. 

 
Adults Commissioning Committee Members are now asked to approve the actions 
outlined in the Adult Services section of Appendix 1 (pages 3-7). 
 

 

2.  Salford approach to planning for 2021/22      
 
2.1 The annual planning processes across the CCG and the City Council have been 

overseen by the Joint Head of Planning and Performance and regular updates have 
been provided to the Integrated Leadership Team (ILT) and CCG Executive Team.  An 
early draft of the integrated commissioning plan was shared with the CCG Executive 
Team and Integrated Leadership Team in May, subject to any final amendments as a 
result of City Council business planning (for jointly delivered areas of work) which 
concluded at the end of June 2021.   

 
 

Page 4



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

3. Planning for the future       
 
3.1 Salford Locality Plan 
 
3.2  In line with national and GM planning requirements Salford refreshed its Locality Plan 

in 2019/20.  The locality plan is the ‘blueprint’ for well-being, health and social care in 
Salford; it is a public health led, system plan. Launched in April 2016, it explains how 
providers of public services - like the NHS, Salford City Council, Fire Service and Police 
- will work closely together with the private and voluntary sector so services work better 
and cost less.  The refreshed Locality Plan for 2020-25 was approved by the Health 
and Wellbeing Board in June 2020. 

 
3.3 Work is ongoing to establish a framework for delivery and monitoring of the locality 

plan.  This work will be closely linked to the reporting arrangements for the integrated 
commissioning plan in Salford, to avoid duplication of effort across the system.   

 
3.4 There is much more to do across the city in terms of delivering our locality vision, 

priorities and clinical outcomes in 2021-22. However, Salford is in a very strong 
position, with a clear history of investment in mental health services and in primary care 
services; a drive to move services from acute to community settings and with a clear 
focus on early identification in everything from cancer diagnosis to childhood 
development difficulties.  

3.5 NHS National Planning Guidance 
 
3.6 NHS England issued its 2021/22 Priorities and Operational Planning Guidance on 25th 

March 2021. The guidance focuses on six priorities for the year ahead:   
 

A. Supporting the health and wellbeing of staff and taking action on recruitment 
and retention 

B. Delivering the NHS COVID vaccination programme and continuing to meet 
the needs of patients with COVID-19 

C. Building on what we have learned during the pandemic to transform the 
delivery of services, accelerate the restoration of elective and cancer care and 
manage the increasing demand on mental health services 

D. Expanding primary care capacity to improve access, local health outcomes 
and address health inequalities 

E. Transforming community and urgent and emergency care to prevent 
inappropriate attendance at emergency departments (ED), improve timely 
admission to hospital for ED patients and reduce length of stay 

F. Working collaboratively across systems to deliver on these priorities. 
 

3.7 As part of Salford’s local annual planning process, Salford CCG has considered this 
guidance in detail, including undertaking a local self-assessment and gap analysis with 
regard to what more we need to do for the people of Salford.  

 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

3.8 Transition to an Integrated Care System 
 
3.9 In addition to the national planning guidance, NHS England has issued a set of 

Implementation Guidance which focuses on the key milestones of establishing an 
integrated care system.  Salford CCG will ensure that these milestones are built into its 
locality programme management arrangements and in planning for the transition to a 
GM ICS as part of its strategic delivery plans. 

 
3.10 Although the arrangements outlined above are set to take place with effect from 1st 

April 2022, planning for 2022/23 will need to commence in the Autumn of 2021/22 and 
in line with any further NHS planning guidance published later this year.   

 
3.11 With this in mind, it is expected that the CCG and City Council will take the usual 

approach to annual planning in order to ensure as much certainty as possible in terms 
of priorities for delivery in the early part of 2022/23. 

 
3.12 COVID-19 
 
3.13 There are a number of objectives incorporated into this plan which relate to recovery 

following the huge impact COVID-19 had had on our local population and on our health 
and care services.  Whilst much planning has taken place to put us on the road to 
recovery, it is impossible to completely predict what ongoing impact COVID-19 will 
have, or indeed whether we may experience additional waves of the virus.  This plan 
will remain dynamic to ensure that we can respond rapidly to any changes needs within 
our local population or health and care system as a result of COVID-19, or indeed other 
factors. 

 
 

4. Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 
 
4.1 Given the extraordinary year that 2020/21 was, progress against our plans has been 

positive but has had to be balanced against the immediate response to COVID.  
Therefore, there were areas of the strategic annual plan for 2020/21 that had to be 
deferred to 2021/22.  By way of summary, in mid-March 2021 we reported a total of 
193 actions in the 2020/21 plan.  31 of those actions had already been completed, 40 
had been flagged for carry over (deferred) to 2021/22, 102 were marked for completion 
by 31/3/2021 and 1 had been cancelled in year.  The remaining actions had missed 
their due date for completion and required review as part of the planning process. 

 
4.2 In order to ensure that every action in the draft plan for 2021/22 was assessed and 

prioritised appropriately, all staff were asked to review their proposed 2021/22 actions 
in conjunction with their manager in February 2021.  This was done in line with the 
financial appraisals conducted by the finance and contracting directorate, as presented 
to the joint committees in November 2020.   

 
4.3 In prioritising work and determining an approach for any new actions for 2021/22, due 

regard has been given to: 

Page 6



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 The refreshed Great Eight - the Salford Way, including newly published 
city-wide strategies for tackling poverty and inequalities, including those 
which may have been exacerbated by COVID-19 

 ‘building back better and fairer’ 

 engaging with the public 

 engaging with clinicians and partner organisations, including the VCSE 
sector 

 building social value 
 
4.4 2021/22 marks the fifth year that Salford City Council and Salford CCG have 

collaboratively developed strong prioritised business plans.  The integrated 
commissioning plan for 2021/22 has been developed using detailed needs 
assessment, population growth estimates, knowledge of pressures in the system, and 
quality, safety and performance within the services we commission.  It also integrates 
all national expectations for the NHS, including the NHS Long Term Plan, to ensure we 
continue to keep Salford at the forefront of delivering ‘outstanding’ services to patients. 

 
4.5 Working as a leading partner in the Greater Manchester Health and Social 

 Care Partnership and also locally with Salford City Council the plan includes our joint 
working to ensure patients in Salford benefit from the highest quality joined up care.  It 
is structured in line with the integrated commissioning arrangements with  Salford City 
Council, as we decide together how best to spend the health and social care funding 
to most improve health and wellbeing for local residents. 

 
4.6 The Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 is attached to this paper at 

Appendix 1 for information and assurance; it outlines high level priorities for each of 
the strategic programme area from 1st April 2021 until 31st March 2022 to ensure the 
CCG and City Council play a leading role in delivering the Salford Locality Plan for local 
people.  There are six strategic programme areas outlined in the plan; these include: 

 

 Children’s and maternity services 

 Adults Services 

 All Age Mental Health 

 Primary Care 

 Quality, safety, innovation, and research 

 Enabling transformation 
 
4.7  It is important to note that detailed local plans are still being finalised with colleagues 

from the CCG and Salford City Council and may be subject to in year change, pending 
the publication of any further national planning guidance; any further guidance from 
GM / NHSE/I as part of Phase 4 COVID-19 planning; and any emerging guidance with 
regards to planning for the transition to a Greater Manchester (GM) Integrated Care 
System (ICS).   

 
4.10 Supplementary Finance Commentary 
 
4.11 The full year draft plan for the Integrated Fund was previously discussed and amended 

at the Health and Care Commissioning Board prior to the confirmation of NHS 

Page 7



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

allocations.  This indicated that the forecast deficit in the fund would be approximately 
£6m. The partners agreed to move forward with the plan whilst identifying opportunities 
to mitigate this level of risk.  

 
4.12 NHS allocations have now been confirmed for the first six months of 2021/22 only and 

draft budgets have been reviewed accordingly.  Based on the assumptions that NHS 
allocations will be the same for the second half of 2021/22 and expenditure is in line 
with budgets, the forecast deficit in the Integrated Fund is £6.1m.  All of the locality plan 
investments approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board have been included in the 
financial plan as committed expenditure.  However there are still a number of risks and 
challenges inherent in the plan such as deliverability of savings from the Better 
Outcomes New Delivery (BOND) programme, assumptions regarding the likely level of 
client income, the requirement for ongoing COVID support services and the difficulty in 
making investment decisions where funding is not certain for the full financial year. 

 

5. Recommendations 
 
 
5.1 The Adults Commissioning Committee is asked to: 
 

 Note the content of this report and Appendix 1 for information and assurance. 

 Approve the actions outlined in the Adults Services section of Appendix 1 (pages 
3-7). 

 
 
 
Emma Reid 
Joint Head of Planning and Performance 
 
Appendix 1 – Integrated Commissioning Annual Plan for 2021/22 
 
 

Page 8



 

 
Page 1 

 

 

 
  

 
 

Health and Social Care 
Commissioning in Salford 
  

Integrated Commissioning 
Annual Plan 2021-22 

 

Appendix 1 

Page 9



 

 
Page 2 

 

Strategic Plan on a Page 2021-22 – Health and Social Care Commissioning in Salford 
 

 

P
age 10



 

 
Page 3 

 

 

Adult Services  
 

Executive Lead Karen Proctor; Charlotte Ramsden Lead Member Cllr. John Merry 

Joint Chairs Cllr. John Merry; Dr. Jeremy Tankel Clinical Lead Tom Regan 

Lay Lead TBC 

 
 
We want all adults in Salford to live independent, fulfilling and productive lives which 

will help them to manage their own health and wellbeing and ensure a healthy life 
expectancy.  For those that need care and help, we want them to feel confident that 

their care is compassionate, of high quality and meets their needs. 
 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Adults Social Care Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Adults Social Care in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Develop commissioning standards for technology enabled care   

Review Age UK services for people with dementia and wider Age Well day 
services to inform the development of a new model that is consistent with 
neighbourhood models of care and procure new service 

Undertake improvement programme with the Independent Living Service 

Deliver the Adults Social Care Best Value and Efficiency plan working with 
Salford Royal Foundation Trust / Salford Care Organisation and Greater 
Manchester Mental Health to secure the agreed level of budgetary savings for 
Adult Social Care   

Develop and implement the Age Friendly City programme via the Age Friendly 
Alliance action plan including the active ageing project 

Adults Care Pathway Evaluate impact of investment in 24/7 integrated End of Life Care specification   

Review of Neuro-rehab pathway for personalised packages of care and care 
pathways 

Establish Greater Manchester wide commissioning governance for Inpatient 
Neuro-Rehabilitation   

Update the service specification for The Maples   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Adults Care Pathway in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Confirm the commissioning intentions for Oviva Diabetes Support for 2021/22 
and 2022/23 in the light of any Greater Manchester developments   

Engage with NHS Local Health Care Record Exemplar Programme (LHCRE) to 
deliver a shared care plan across sectors for dementia and frailty   

Support changes to Greater Manchester (GM) Effective Use of Resource (EUR) 
arrangements in the light of development of GM Integrated Care System (ICS)   

Page 11



 

 
Page 4 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Amend the service specification for the Anti-Coagulation Service in the light of 
self-testing and new oral anticoagulants (NOACs) and direct oral anticoagulants 
(DOACs) drugs   

Agree CCG action plan re Healthier Together  

Evaluate capacity and resources for end of life care including care home 
palliative care team service review and review of palliative care counselling 
service   

Adults Community 
Health Care & 
Voluntary, Community 
and Social Enterprise 
(VCSE) 

Working with system partners, ensure there is an agreed project scope and plan 
to deliver the Adults Strategic System Priority of 'Adults Integrated Community'  

Ensure appropriate monitoring and reporting systems are developed and 
implemented for the next phase of transformation new models of care and that 
learning is fed into future commissioning decisions   

Review and agree with PCNs the commissioning of Well Being Matters   

Review Service Level Agreement with Council for Voluntary Services and make 
recommendations for 2022/23 and beyond 

Develop a strategic approach to the reconfiguration of intermediate care beds 
across the city 

Review Advice and Information Service (CAB) 

Agree commissioner action plan for phlebotomy services   

Develop, implement and monitor Third Sector Fund with Community for 
Voluntary Services (CVS) including the in year additional £200k Mental Health 
fund   

Support and review local plans to progress the development of Advice & 
Guidance and Consultant Connect (including for paediatric services) 

Agree plan for review of community cardiology services e.g. Heart Failure, 
Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinic (RACPC)   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Adults Community Health Care & Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) in accordance with GM recovery 
plans and national planning guidance   

Develop agreed programme of service improvement of the services delivered by 
Aspire 

Confirm commissioning arrangements for Salford’s community COVID services 
(i.e. oximetry@home and post COVID clinic)  

Confirm long term commissioning intentions for Healthy Living Centres 

Support the development of Community Diagnostic Hubs for Salford   

Reducing CVD - Health checks 

Adults Public Health Sustain the CURE model in hospital and good practice in the community. The 
CURE project is a treatment programme to help smokers with their tobacco 
addiction and quit smoking.   

Ensure there is a Public Health contribution to the strategic review of Salford 
Community Leisure   

Review and refresh Salford Activity Framework   

Develop a whole system approach to reduce smoking prevalence in Salford   

Implement the GM Alcohol and Drug Strategy including service provision   

Page 12



 

 
Page 5 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Review sexual health service specifications for commissioning and develop an 
enhanced primary care sexual health offer   

Review weight management pathways across community delivery partners and 
the NHS to inform the development of the All Age Obesity Strategy   

Promote and tackle inequalities in uptake of the COVID vaccine and testing 
offer – phase 2 and 3 (and any future phases) supporting primary care delivery   

Develop the approach for a strengths and asset-based JSSNA (Joint Strategic 
Strengths and Needs Assessment).   

Support the development of Salford business case for CURE. The CURE 
project is a treatment programme to help smokers with their tobacco addiction 
and quit smoking.   

Management of Health Care Associated Infection:  
Monitor C. difficile and methicillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) 
rates and develop work programmes to support the maintenance or possible 
reduction in rates.  
Work across the health and social care system to support the reduction of 
Escherichia coli (E. coli) rates.   

Co-design and commission a population health focused, age well service that 
supports the WHO’s Age Friendly City model   

Develop a system wide approach to social prescribing in Salford 

Work with the Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and neighbourhoods to agree 
and implement the public health and primary care development plan   

Support Salford Lung Health Check programme 

Lead the COVID contain response, working across council, NHS and wider 
partners to support recovery   

Develop All Age Obesity Strategy encompassing food, physical activity and 
place interventions   

Develop public health engagement and inclusion activities within the JSSNA 
(Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment) approach.   

Urgent Care Services Agree business case for Salford’s Urgent Care Redesign 

Implement and evaluate business case for Salford’s Urgent Care Redesign 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Urgent Care Services in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Elective Care Ensure Salford’s population have optimum access to independent sector 
hospital (i.e. Oaklands) capacity   

Support Northern Care Alliance (NCA) Urology Transformation   

Progress local workstreams to support the GM Elective Care Reform Board’s 
work (e.g. Gastroenterology)   

Secure sufficient capacity to meet the vasectomy related needs of Salford’s 
population   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Elective Care in accordance with GM recovery 
plans and national planning guidance   

Support development of Dermatology services across Greater Manchester and 
progress local workstreams (e.g. Decide clinical education & training 
programme, advice & guidance). 

Page 13



 

 
Page 6 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Support development of rapid access diagnostics for Salford’s cancer patients  

Support improvements in diagnostic performance 

Outpatient reform - To ensure main providers meet 30% requirements from 
Long Term Plan (Digital) 

Review access to orthopaedic elective surgery, considering use of Salford 
Royal, Fairfield, and Oaklands 

Deliver local actions outlined in CCGs cancer plan aligned to GM Cancer Plan  

Adults Mental Health Undertake suicide prevention training programme with key frontline workers 

Oversee the Living Well development to extend reach across the city and 
ensure fidelity to new models of community mental health as per NHS long term 
plan/PCN reimbursable roles and develop a business case for recurrent 
investment 

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health including Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) and Early Intervention to improve 
attachment and bonding.   

The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Mental Health support 
for adults   

Develop diagnostic and post diagnostic services for ASD (Autistic Spectrum 
Disorder) in line with national policy and standards 

Develop a Salford priorities programme in response to the GM Autism strategy 

Work with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector to 
extend reach around suicide prevention to priority groups   

Evaluate the bereavement counselling pilot 

Develop Mental Health Care Home Liaison model and associated business 
case for investment 

Improve and widen the offer for complex service users/rehab/specialist 
placements, including repatriation   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Adults Mental Health in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Mental Health Crisis 
and Hospital to Home 

Deliver an improved health (including mental health) offer for care leavers, and 
improved transitions between children's and adult services   

Review mental health care pathways including:  
- Role and function of adult mental health residential care  
- Supported accommodation  

Review crisis care provision alternatives to A+E support including mental health 
intermediate care beds and listening lounge 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Mental Health Crisis and Hospital to Home in 
accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Improving Access to 
Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT) 

Improve pathways between Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 
(IAPT) services and key physical health services such as Health Psychology, 
Cardiology, Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and Diabetes, and 
explore potential of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT Long Term 
Conditions (LTCs) Five Year Forward View (FYFV) ambition   

Page 14



 

 
Page 7 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to IAPT in accordance with GM recovery plans and 
national planning guidance   

 

 

Children’s and Maternity Services 

Executive Lead Charlotte Ramsden; Karen Proctor Lead Member Cllr. Jim Cammell 

Joint Chairs Cllr. Jim Cammell; Dr. Nick Browne Clinical Lead Wan Ley-Yeung 

Lay Lead Paul Kavanagh-Fields  

 
We want all children and young people in Salford to achieve their potential. 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Children's Care Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Children's Care in accordance with GM recovery 
plans and national planning guidance 

Embed and further develop an integrated locality model to ensure families, 
children and young people (0-25 years) are offered early help which is timely 
and empowers families to take control of their lives 

Explore the integration of transitional and contextual safeguarding and develop 
an overarching strategy with partners and complex safeguarding teams 

Implement the strategy for domestic abuse services for children's and adult 
services   

Implement the Family Partnership Model in Children's social care and evaluate 
the impact in Early Help services   

Evidence a reduction in the number of parents who have repeated children 
looked after following birth, through the Strengthening Families Programme; and 
engage the Early Help Neighbourhood Group to identify gaps and scale   

Implement a whole system approach to trauma and adversity and link to Greater 
Manchester developments   

Undertake baselines, develop the business case, establish an outcomes 
framework and review/refine a new needs-led integrated neuro-development 
pathway for children and young people aged 0-25   

Implementation of recruitment and retention strategy for children's services 
workforce 

Produce an all age Adolescence Strategy  

Route29 to develop a multi-agency, and intelligence-led approach and strategy 
for delivery, that helps practitioners to work with ‘safe uncertainty’, to learn and 
take risks together, and to stay focused on managing risk for the young person 
 

Transformation of the residential estate   

Deliver the Inclusion Strategy and action plan   

Page 15



 

 
Page 8 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Deliver the SEND Strategy and action plan   

Refresh the Salford Employment Partnership Skills Strategy and action plan   

Review the council's Employment Skills offer and package of support   

Support effective leadership in schools (supporting effective learning, improving 
school governance, strengthening safeguarding)   

Ensure there is sufficiency and quality of school provision   

Undertake service reviews of short term investments with a view to future long 
term plans   

Children's Health Identify the needs and options for paediatric end of life and palliative care 
services  

Agree business case for Paediatric Occupational Therapy and Physiotherapy   

Review access to Acute Paediatric Services i.e. Paediatric Assessment and 
Decision Area (PANDA) unit provision and Paediatric impatient and surgical 
beds   

Evaluate the paediatric avoidable admissions care bundle   

Explore opportunity for the introduction of Individual Budgets for Children and 
young people 

Gain agreement and commence the use of the amended Paediatric 
Ophthalmology Service specification   

Determine future commissioning arrangements for Ingleside Birth and 
Community Centre (BCC)   

Agree business case for Community Paediatrics   

Agree a local plan in response to the Greater Manchester services specification 
for Children’s Community Nursing Team   

Evaluate implementation of paediatric Speech Language and Communication 
Needs specification   

Review paediatric equipment provision in the light of recent additional technician 
post considering recommendations from the special educational needs and 
disability (SEND) review and orthotics   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Children's Health in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Children's Mental 
Health 

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to provide early 
intervention to improve attachment and bonding   

Develop a support and supervision network to support children's workforce to 
ensure they receive the support they need to carry out their work safely and 
confidently 

Finalise, gain approval and implement new transitions policy and guidance for 
young people with complex needs and to support improved mental health 
transitions   

Review counselling for children and young people within Salford (including 
bereavement and palliative care)   

Implement an integrated eating disorder pathway for young people, with non-
interruption of care at age 18 and/or earlier access to adult services if and when 
needed 

Page 16



 

 
Page 9 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Children's Mental Health in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Delivery of suicide prevention training programme to support staff / volunteers 
working with Salford children and young people  

Develop an approach to personal budgets in mental health   

Develop an approach to supporting the mental health needs of children with 
special educational needs and disability (SEND)   

Children's Public 
Health 

Refresh and implement the Children’s Obesity Strategic Action Plan working 
with partners to scope future actions around food, physical activity and place   

Maximise uptake across all NHS screening and immunisation programmes   

Implement and evaluate the impact of the Greater Manchester (GM) Oral 
Transformation programme and seek other opportunities to improve oral health 
in children   

Continue to work with CCG on the redesign of the weight management pathway 
and strengthen the services for children and young people   

Identify the needs of children and young people in Salford to make healthy 
choices, stay safe and minimise risky behaviours by undertaking a needs 
assessment and social insight work   

Undertake a review of unintentional injuries and develop a plan to reduce the 
causal factors   

Review the GM Children’s Oral Health Programme and map dental extractions 
locally to develop a local plan for intervention 

Page 17



 

 
Page 10 

 

 

All Age Mental Health 
 

Executive Lead Karen Proctor; Charlotte Ramsden Lead Member Cllr. Damian Bailey 

Lay Lead TBC Clinical Lead Dr. Jenny Walton 

 
We want Salford to be a city where good mental health, a good start in life, a family 

approach to mental wellbeing, the ability to adapt and manage adversity and 
recognition of the wider factors affecting mental health are supported throughout the 
life course; from preparing for a new baby, into adulthood and throughout older age. 
 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Adults Mental Health Undertake suicide prevention training programme with key frontline workers 

Oversee the Living Well development to extend reach across the city and 
ensure fidelity to new models of community mental health as per NHS long term 
plan/PCN reimbursable roles and develop a business case for recurrent 
investment 

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health including Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) and Early Intervention to improve 
attachment and bonding.   

The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Mental Health support 
for adults   

Develop diagnostic and post diagnostic services for ASD (Autistic Spectrum 
Disorder) in line with national policy and standards 

Develop a Salford priorities programme in response to the GM Autism strategy 

Work with the Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector to 
extend reach around suicide prevention to priority groups   

Evaluate the bereavement counselling pilot 

Develop Mental Health Care Home Liaison model and associated business 
case for investment 

Improve and widen the offer for complex service users/rehab/specialist 
placements, including repatriation   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Adults Mental Health in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Mental Health Crisis 
and Hospital to Home 
Improving Access to 
Psychological 
Therapies (IAPT) 

Deliver an improved health (including mental health) offer for care leavers, and 
improved transitions between children's and adult services   

Review mental health care pathways including:  
- Role and function of adult mental health residential care  
- Supported accommodation  

Page 18



 

 
Page 11 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Review crisis care provision alternatives to A+E support including mental health 
intermediate care beds and listening lounge 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Mental Health Crisis and Hospital to Home in 
accordance with GM recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Improve pathways between Improving Access to Psychological Therapies 
(IAPT) services and key physical health services such as Health Psychology, 
Cardiology, Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) and Diabetes, and 
explore potential of how this could contribute to meeting IAPT Long Term 
Conditions (LTCs) Five Year Forward View (FYFV) ambition   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to IAPT in accordance with GM recovery plans and 
national planning guidance   

Adults Mental Health Undertake suicide prevention training programme with key frontline workers 

Oversee the Living Well development to extend reach across the city and 
ensure fidelity to new models of community mental health as per NHS long term 
plan/PCN reimbursable roles and develop a business case for recurrent 
investment 

Children's Mental 
Health 

Co-ordinate the approach for parent-infant mental health to provide early 
intervention to improve attachment and bonding   

Develop a support and supervision network to support children's workforce to 
ensure they receive the support they need to carry out their work safely and 
confidently 

Finalise, gain approval and implement new transitions policy and guidance for 
young people with complex needs and to support improved mental health 
transitions   

Review counselling for children and young people within Salford (including 
bereavement and palliative care)   

Implement an integrated eating disorder pathway for young people, with non-
interruption of care at age 18 and/or earlier access to adult services if and when 
needed 

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Children's Mental Health in accordance with GM 
recovery plans and national planning guidance   

Delivery of suicide prevention training programme to support staff / volunteers 
working with Salford children and young people  

Develop an approach to personal budgets in mental health   

Develop an approach to supporting the mental health needs of children with 
special educational needs and disability (SEND)   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

 
Page 12 

 

 

Primary Care 
 

Executive Lead Karen Proctor Lead Member Cllr. Jim Cammell; Cllr John Merry 

Chair Brian Wroe   

Lay Lead Dr Nageswar Bandla 

 

We want primary medical services in Salford to continue reducing inequalities 
across the city and meeting the needs of the diverse, growing and changing 

population.  
 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Primary Care Digital Increase online access to patient records   

Increase the use of Primary Care Applications (Apps)   

Introduce direct booking from NHS111 

Support the development of electronic consultations (procure an offer for 
practices and exploit benefits to improve patient flow)   

Develop a dashboard to support Primary Care Networks (PCNs) in the 
development, delivery and monitoring of the Impact and Investment Fund (IIF) 
metrics   

Action linked to Transformation e.g. GP system procurement 

Primary Care Estates Consider how Primary Care estates can be more sustainable   

Scope feasibility of Primary Care in Pendleton Leisure Centre   

Determine the scope of The Quays development informed by the progress of 
The Quays pilot and progress to outline specification   

Progress the Lower Broughton scheme to approved agreement with developer 

Progress development of primary care estate in Irlam 

Progress development of The Limes   

Transition the practice to the new premises in Little Hulton and facilitate 
agreement regarding community services use   

Primary Care Reducing 
Variation and 
Inequalities 

Oversee delivery of the 2021-22 Salford Standard   

Develop the 2022-23 Salford Standard   

Finalise and implement the Primary Care Assurance Framework   

Review services in light of COVID recovery - determine and implement 
restoration activities relevant to Primary Care in accordance with GM recovery 
plans and national planning guidance   

Primary Care 
Transformation 

Monitor and evaluate the implementation of The Quays branch practice 

Implement the monitoring and review requirements of the refreshed Special 
Allocation Scheme   

Page 20



 

 
Page 13 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Maintain and review support to practices in response to COVID, for example via 
GP COVID Group, PCN huddles  

Improve access to primary care for vulnerable groups, e.g. the asylum seeker 
population   

Agree and implement plans for a community ophthalmology service   

Improve Primary Care support function arrangements e.g. Electronic Referral 
System (ERS), interpretation/translation   

Review Care Homes Medical Practice Service specification to align to the 
requirements of the Primary Care Network (PCN) Direct Enhanced Services 
(DES)   

Review and specify future requirements of Salford Primary Care Together 
(SPCT) COVID services and consider future requirements e.g. COVID 
assessment services, Salford Wide Extended Access Programme (SWEAP), 
testing facility, etc. and agree implementation plan across primary care   

Oversee the delivery of the requirements of the 2021/22 PCN DES in terms of 
providing support, monitoring and assurance  

Review care home GP specification to include extra care requirements – secure 
appropriate primary care support for any new extra care facilities, determine 
effect on primary care of wider commissioning decisions i.e. housing   

Oversee the transition of the new asylum seeker service into SPCT 

Review implementation of the business case for adult eating disorders   

Primary Care 
Workforce 

Ensure PCN Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme funded workforce is 
developed in line with local need/strategy and assurance mechanisms are in 
place   

Scope the development needs of the non-clinical workforce in primary care and 
implement learning to maximise the contribution, recruitment and retention of 
this workforce   

Implement initiatives to maximise the capacity, resilience and retention of the 
primary care workforce, incorporating learning from the COVID-19 pandemic    

 

Page 21



 

 
Page 14 

 

 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research 
 

Executive Lead Claire Vaughan Clinical Lead Dr. Jeremy Tankel 

Lay Lead Paul Kavanagh-Fields 

 
We want to be the safest health and social care system in the country. 

 
Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Safeguarding Ensure the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) continues to meet its statutory 
duties in relation to safeguarding children and adults, operating as a key 
strategic partner within the safeguarding partnership arrangements. Deliver 
targeted work on:  
- Complex safeguarding  
- Domestic abuse  
- Self-neglect and neglect  

Ensure that the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is fully engaged in 
recovery planning to meet any additional safeguarding requirements as a result 
of COVID   

Further develop the safeguarding assurance framework across all providers 

Reshape the safeguarding team to deliver an integrated approach to managing 
safeguarding across families 

Identify / confirm and implement the statutory requirements of the Mental 
Capacity Bill within the CCG   

Support the implementation of the Domestic Abuse Strategy across all strategic 
programmes for integrated commissioning in Salford   

Quality Review quality and safety strategy for delivery in an Integrated Care System 
(ICS)   

Ensure collaboration with key stakeholders and patient safety specialists to 
embed the new patient safety strategy (updated February 2021) across the 
system. Instigate a clearer focus on the patient voice and patient safety 
inequalities, particularly older people and Learning Disability (LD) service users  

Continue to work collaboratively with system partners in a changing health 
economy to monitor quality assurance in a system that lives with COVID   

Ensure the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) continues to meet its statutory 
duties in relation to the ongoing delivery, monitoring and evaluation of Care and 
Treatment Reviews (CTRs)   

Share learning across multiple providers, e.g. acute and Mental Health (MH) 
providers   

Review and improve soft intelligence quality information including practice, 
Patient Participation Groups (PPGs) and patient feedback   

Page 22



 

 
Page 15 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Safer Salford Continue to implement system-wide learning and improvement as a result of as 
a result of Safeguarding Reviews (including CSPR’s and SAR’s), mortality 
reviews (including child deaths and LeDeR) 

Improvement programmes agreed as part of the Safer Salford programme 
underpin the adult priorities around ASC targeting care homes and domiciliary 
care  

Continue to support quality improvement in primary care with a focus on 
upskilling PCN quality improvement initiatives 

Reduce the risk of Health Care Associated Infections (including undertaking 
audits of health care settings and learning from outbreaks)   

Medicines 
Optimisation 

Contribute to the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Best Value Programme 
through primary care prescribing budget efficacies   

Continue with the integrated medicines improvement work with Salford Royal 
Foundation Trust (SRFT) and Greater Manchester Mental Health (GMMH)   

Deliver the NHS Oversight Framework priorities:  
- Reducing the rate of low priority prescribing  
- Antimicrobial resistance: appropriate prescribing of antibiotics (including broad 
spectrum antibiotics) in primary care   

Deliver the Primary Care Networks Direct Enhanced Service (DES) priorities:  
- Reduce the rate of low priority prescribing  
- Antimicrobial resistance  
- Low carbon inhaler use  
- Drugs that can cause dependencies   

Reduce the environmental impact of prescribing by developing a system wide 
approach to inhalers and waste   

Contribute to shaping Integrated Pharmacy and Medicines Optimisation (IPMO) 
across the Greater Manchester Integrated Care System (GM ICS)   

Support the COVID vaccination programme   

Continuing Health Care 
(CHC) / Funded 
Nursing Care 

Continue the move to paper light working and addressing compatibility with 
Salford City Council (SCC) Information Technology (IT) interfaces   

Ensure the national Discharge to assess processes are delivered safely and in 
line with eligibility for NHS Funding   

Quality Innovation Networks (QIN) and quality in care home support   

Implement a revised neuro-rehabilitation pathway to enable the safe 
commissioning of quality assured slow stream neuro-rehab services for 
individuals assessed as requiring this care   

Co-design an alternative offer of delivering care using the CHC National 
framework and Personal Health Budgets (PHB) guidance to meet the cultural 
needs of the Orthodox Jewish Community and utilise the learning to allow 
spread of this offer of PHB   

Provide clinical support to maximise the use of The Maples and reduce the 
reliance on out of area (OOA) placements   

Innovation and 
Research 

Embed research and innovation, and quality improvement into the culture and 
ethos for the Salford ‘Building Back Better’ recovery plans   

Deliver an Innovation and Improvement Fund to support and embed 
improvement and innovation capacity and capability within Primary Care and 
partners   

Page 23



 

 
Page 16 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Develop and deliver a 12 month work plan for Quality, Research and Innovation 
aligning to the move to Integrated Care System (ICS) structures   

Page 24



 

 
Page 17 

 

 

Enablers (Salford Clinical Commissioning Group Only) 
 

Executive Lead David Warhurst; Hannah Dobrowolska Clinical Lead Dr. Tom Tasker 

Lay Lead Anna Sharpley 
 

 

We want to deliver ‘outstanding’ corporate services, through highly skilled and 
motivated staff, that enable the delivery of new models of care, high quality 

outcomes and financial benefits. 
 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Statutory duties, 
Governance and Policy 

Ensure the CCG continues to meet its wide range of statutory duties, 
maintaining and improving its robust governance arrangements 

Financial Management Develop a clear template and process for business cases - this will include clear 
Post Project Evaluation (PPE) dates and objectives. This PPE should link 
strongly to the Best value programme   

Strategic Planning and 
Risk 

Design and implement service group portals within Pentana Browser to visually 
display dynamic service group performance, risk and action plan information   

Work with locality partners to agree and deliver a place based system business 
planning process for 2022-23 incorporating national and ICS programmes to 
deliver a balanced budget across pooled / integrated funds, contributing to 
Locality level business planning   

Undertake joint review of local risk management strategies in light of ICS 
changes   

Estates Develop system approach to improving utilisation and estates asset review   

Coordinate CCG safe return to the office  

Improve utilisation and reduce void costs for estates including:  
- Improving available data to drive uptake of bookable space.  
- Regular reporting though the integrated governance structure  
- Strong links to locality strategy  

Contracting Review the current process for monitoring and reporting best value across the 
locality to enhance delivery and ensure committees understand the risk of new 
investments and the shortfall of delivery of against saving targets   

Provide contract and finance support to CCG and City Council colleagues in 
development of tenders and business cases. This should incorporate social 
value and recognise the impact COVID has had on the Salford locality   

Provide contract and finance support to GM and GM Health & Social Care 
Partnership to deliver the objectives of the GM Devolution Programme 

Take into account national changes in contracting, both during the recovery 
phase and future planning, including payment reform. This should also include a 
risk stratified breakdown of contracts and the Salford financial offer in response 
to the pandemic. 

Page 25



 

 
Page 18 

 

Strategic Programme  Draft 2021-22 Actions 

Ensure the CCG continues to meet its statutory duties / constitutional 
commitments in relation to performance, maintaining and improving its robust 
performance management and reporting arrangements   

Information 
Management and 
Technology (IM&T) 

Aligned with Digital strategy and strategic developments, continue the roll out 
and also sustain the innovation during COVID working with PCNs and partners   

Continue with locality based IM&T strategy development and delivery with all 
partners, including fully implementing the shared record programme, reviewing 
the resources to embed and improve digital maturity and maximising the 
innovation seen during COVID of working with Primary Care Networks (PCNs)   

Engagement, Inclusion 
and Development, HR 
and Social Value 

Deliver CCG Communications work plan  

Deliver integrated engagement team’s engagement work plan 

Deliver CCG Organisational Development work plan 

Deliver CCG HR work plan 

Deliver the CCG elements of communications and engagement plans 
supporting the Salford Together and Bolton, Salford, Wigan Partnership 

Deliver the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Equality and Inclusion work 
plan and work as a key partner in the delivery of the Salford Equality 
Improvement Action Programme, in particular addressing the increased 
inequalities highlighted and created by COVID   

Deliver the Social Value work plan with a focus on environmental action and 
tackling poverty 

Deliver the CCG elements of communications and engagement plans 
supporting the Locality Plan 

Salford Locality 
Integrated Care 
System (ICS) 
Transition 

Establish and manage the Salford Locality Integrated Care System (ICS) 
Transition Programme and agree programme scope to deliver Locality changes   

Determine and Implement ICS place level leadership (political, clinical and 
management) and governance arrangements 

Determine and implement financial plans and arrangements to enact ICS 
changes  

Determine and implement ICS arrangements for current CCG functions and 
statutory duties 

Support staff through ICS changes and complete ICS communication, 
engagement, OD and HR actions 

Determine and implement plans and arrangements to enact CCG Close Down 
including IT, Finance, Statutory duties etc   

 

Page 26



 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Adults’ Commissioning Committee  
14th July 2021 
Item 5 - Finance Report  
 
Item for: Decision/Assurance/Information (Please delete as appropriate) 
 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Date of Paper: 28th June 2021 

In case of query, please contact: David Warhurst, Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Strategic Priorities:  
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Quality, Safety, Innovation and Research  

Adult Services 

Children’s and Maternity Services  

All Age Mental Health  

Primary Care  

Enabling Transformation  

Mayoral Priorities: 
(Please tick as appropriate) 

Tackling poverty and inequality  

Reducing Health Inequalities  

Skills and Education (A Learning City)  

Affordable Housing  

Transport and Digital Connectivity  

Tackling the Climate Change Emergency  

Vibrant Place and Spaces  

Creating an Economy for All  

Purpose of Paper:                                    
 
This paper provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee with an overview of the opening 
budgets for 2021/22 (Section 2) along with an update relating to the YTD financial 
performance and forecast and associated risks to the financial plan of the Adults Integrated 
Fund for 2021/22.  

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

https://www.salford.gov.uk/cmpriorities


 

   
 

 

    
    
    
     

Further information 

How will this benefit the health and wellbeing of 
Salford residents, or the CCG or City Council? 

Ensuring public funding is spent 
appropriately.  Achieving Value for Money, 
ensuring that funding is available to protect 
core services. 

How does this paper address health inequalities 
and promote inclusion? 

Financial and performance pressures 
associated with the adults’ integrated fund 
services. Through management of committed 
developments and holding providers to 
account for performance. 

What risks may arise as a result of this paper 
and how will they be mitigated? 

 

Does this address any existing high risks facing 
the organisation and how does it reduce them? 

 

Are there any possible conflicts of interest 
associated with this paper? 

N/A 

Will any current services or roles be affected by 
issues within this paper and what are they? 

N/A 

Note: Where appropriate, please ensure detail is provided. 

 
Document Development 

Has there been Public Engagement? N/A 

Has there been Clinical Engagement? N/A 

Has the impact on Salford socially, economically 
and environmentally been considered? 

N/A 

Has there been an analysis of any impacts on 
equality? 

N/A 

Has legal advice been obtained? N/A 

Has this been to any groups or committees for 
engagement, comments, or approval?  

Elements have been reviewed by the Service and 
Finance Group 

Note: Where relevant, please provide detail and ensure that it is clear how and when particular stakeholders were 

involved in this work, that there is clarity of what the key message/decision was, and whether amendments were 
requested about any part of the work.

Page 28



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

Finance Report 
 

1.  Executive Summary 
   

 
In 2020/21 the Adults integrated fund had a projected overspend against available funding 
of £2m, which has increased by £1.3m, consequently the financial overspend for 2021/22 
is now £3.3m. This does allow funding of £9.8m for system priorities including a continued 
move towards the Real Living Wage (RLW) and achievement of key standards such as 
Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS). 
 
Whilst the HCCB signed off the adults’ £3.3m opening financial risk, as always, the system 
should aspire to attain having a financially sustainable position. The following detail the 
various element of the financial plan. 
 
Section 2 – Provides the committee with the key planning assumptions and detail around 
the Adults’ integrated fund plan for 2021/22. 
 
Section 3 – Highlights the YTD and Forecast of the adults integrated fund up to May 2021 
with a projected £2.2m overspend for the year which is lower than the £3.1m starting adults’ 
pressure. 
 
Section 4 – Provides an update on the investment decisions that form part of the Adults’ 
plan for 2021/22. 
 
Section 5 – Highlights the key risks and issues associated with delivering the 2021/22 plan 
for the Adults’ integrated fund. 
 
Section 6 – Gives an update on the saving programme required in 2021/22 for the plan to 
be able to be achieved. 
 
ACC is asked to note the detailed plan, financially position and the associated risks along 
with the requirement to deliver on the savings programme for the Adults’ Integrated Fund in 
2021/22. 
 

 

2. Integrated Fund 2021/22 
 
2.1 Salford CCG and Salford Council agreed an integrated fund budget for adults’, 

children’s and primary care health and social care services in April 2019 which covered 
a five year period 2019/20 to 2023/24.  A partnership agreement was signed by 
partners that recognised this five year plan but also recognised that the funding 
identified over this period could be subject to change.  Therefore, within the partnership 
agreement, there are specific conditions: 

 
 Partners’ financial contributions to the pooled budget will be reviewed 

annually, ahead of the start of each financial year of the agreement. 
 

 The funding that each partner agrees to add into the pool is a “level 1” 
decision i.e. a matter reserved for the Governing Body of the CCG and the 
Cabinet of the City Council.  

 

Page 29



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

2.1.1 Partners have agreed their financial contributions into the integrated fund budget for 
2021/22 and had previously agreed indicative values for the period to 2023/24. The 
potential transition of CCGs into an Integrated Care System results in a level of 
uncertainty, therefore planning beyond the end of this financial year is not now possible 
given the potential of scale of changes. 

 
2.2 The main changes from 2020/21 in relation to funding contributions are: 
 

 Council - Has maintained the non-recurrent grants that were in place for 2020/21 
as continuation of this funding was confirmed for another year in the funding 
settlement for local authorities (LA).  
 

 CCG - Financial regime has been limited again by NHSE in 2021/22 with a limit set 
at a Greater Manchester (GM) funding level and CCG’s only knowing their 
allocation for H1 (April to Sept). Uplift in contracts were set at 0.5% for NHS and 
0.2% for all non-NHS contracts. This resulted in the CCG increasing its 
contributions into the integrated fund services by 2.6% for 2021/22, although this 
is contingent on the financial regime and level of allocation not significantly 
changing for H2 (October to March 2022). 

 
2.3 The expenditure plan for the adults’ integrated fund budget for 2021/22 is detailed in 

Appendix 2; a summary of the changes for 2021/22 is illustrated in figure 1. 
 
2.3.1 The main assumptions used in constructing the expenditure budget are as follows: 
 

 Inflation/Growth - has been added to CCG commissioned provider contracts only 
where applicable. 

 
 Nationally commissioned independent sector (IS) - Contracts concluded at the 

end of March 2021. Therefore, all commissioners had to include spend with IS 
providers within the 2021/22 plans with funding being returned to a regional level 
for this. IS plans have been set based on 2019/20 outturn for 2021/22. 

 
 The national/real living wage - Funding to continue the localities move towards 

the Real Living Wage for 2021/22 is within committed developments and will be 
added to the ASC contract once agreement has been reached with the providers. 

 
 ASC Contingency – A contingency was included within the integrated fund for 

2020/21, to offset the commissioners share of forecast overspend identified in 
planning. This contingency has now been included within the SRFT baseline 
contract. 

 
 Strategy – Other investments to support the localities strategy which was signed 

off through the commissioning committees and Health Care Commissioning Board 
towards the end of 2020/21. 

 
2.4 Based on the assumptions above and the available funding, to achieve financial 

balance within Adults’ a savings target of £3.3m would need to be delivered recurrently. 
Overall, the integrated fund needs to achieve a saving of £6.2m and whilst this level of 
risk was signed off at the Health Care Commissioning Board, the system should aspire 
to improve on this position. 

 
 

Page 30



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

 
 
Figure 1: Adults’ Fund Expenditure Summary 2021/22 

 
 
3.5 The above table illustrates how the 2021/22 budgets have been derived from the 

additional contributions to the Adults integrated fund in line with joint commissioning 
decisions made for 2021/22. 

 

3. 2021/22 Monitoring 

 
3.1  This latest finance report provides the Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) with 

the forecast position of the adults’ element of the Integrated Fund for the financial 
year (2021/22).  The appendices normally contain further detail, but it should be 
noted, due to the majority of contracts remaining on block for H1 and assumed the 
same for H2 these appendices have been removed for this year as they provide 
detail on activity which is not currently being reported. This finance report is based on 
information up to the end of May 2021, the Service and Finance Group (SFG) have 
scrutinised the position and agreed to the key messages. 

 
3.2 The forecast position for 2021/22 at May 2021 is an overspend of £2.2m, where 

expenditure is forecast to underspend by £0.9m against plan this is off set with the 
starting £3.1m pressure for the adults’ integrated fund, as shown in Table 1 below. 

 
  

Page 31



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

Table 1: 2021/22 Financial Summary 

 
 
2.2.1 Acute/other underspends – The CCG has been mandated by NHSE to maintain set 

budget values that have been calculated nationally until the end of September 2021. 
This is expected to continue till March 2021 but remains unconfirmed at this stage. 
All independent sector providers are exempt from these block arrangements and 
have returned to their normal contract arrangements of activity-based payments. 

 
2.2.2 Placements – The trend at the end of 2020/21 has continued into 2021/22 in that 

placement figures are lower than expected in the last two months relating to 
continuing care. However, there has been an increase to the number of mental 
health placements at the start of the year. 

 
2.2.3 Customer & Client Receipts - £0.0m– This is identified as a risk to the fund at the 

time of writing the report the impact for 2021/22 is still under review by local authority 
colleagues but this could have a material impact on the current position of the overall 
fund.  

 
2.2.4 Independent Sector - £0.3m – All providers have returned to activity contracts for 

2021/22 with plans set at 2019/20 outturn levels. The first 2 months has seen a slight 
under performance across all providers against plans. 

 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

4. Strategy and Investment 
 
4.1 An amount of £9.8m is set to be invested in 2021/22 within Adults’ services on new or 

enhanced services across several areas, as shown in figure 2 below. 
 

Figure 2: Adults’ Investment Fund Summary 2021/22 

 
 
4.2 Mental Health is a key investment area for the CCG with particular focus on achieving 

its Mental Health Investment Standard target for 2021/22. A further £3m is to be 
invested into adults’ mental health services in 2021/22. 

 
4.3 The Mayor has set some key priorities to be invested in mostly notably the move 

towards the real living wage within the ASC market. 2021/22 sees commissioner’s take 
another step towards paying the voluntary real living wage of £9.50 with learning 
difficulties (LD) services receiving the RLW rate and all other social care workers 
receiving £9.25. This is well above the national living wage statutory requirement to 
pay £8.91 for 2021/22. 

 
4.4 There are several other investments that are part of the investment strategy with most 

of this funding going to community or third sector services providers. Many of these 
projects are well developed and will be implemented early within the 2021/22 period. 

  

Page 33



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

5. Risks and Issues 
 
5.1 Although the financial plan is presented on a full year basis, the current NHS funding 

regime is only for H1 (Month’s 1-6), therefore H2 (Month’s 7-12) remains a risk to the 
fund until such time as the NHS is informed of its remaining allocation.   The full year 
plan has been developed using the assumptions available for the first half year in the 
absence of guidance, but it is becoming increasingly likely that CCG allocations will be 
reduced in the second half of the year.  As a result, additional savings may be required, 
or investments may need to be reprioritised. 

 
5.2 The level of customer and client income expected has not been adjusted following the 

significant underachievement in 2020/21. There is a risk that this will not recover, and 
underachievement could be seen again in 2021/22 adding to already known pressures 
within the fund. 

 
5.3 The opening budgets for 2021/22 include the delivery of a savings programme, which 

will create a financial pressure if not delivered (section 6). 
 
5.4 Whilst 2020/21 saw ASC come in on plan, with the removal of additional national 

funding streams relating to COVID in H2 this creates a risk that the system will once 
again need to manage the pressure within the fund for 2021/22. 

 
5.5 At the time of writing, the uplift for real living wage is not agreed with the market and 

the cost to the fund could be higher than planned levels for 2021/22. 
 
5.6 There is currently national funding to support expediting discharges (Hospital 

Discharge Programme). This equates to c. £1.5m of potential funding in H1, if the 
scheme doesn’t continue into H2, this could be a risk to the system. 

 
5.7 COVID costs and the consequences of COVID could drive a level of expenditure above 

what has been funded. There are national funding streams to help offset some of these 
costs, which could help to partially mitigate this risk. 

 

6. Savings programme 
 
6.1 As part of planning £0.5m was identified to be saved as part of the market shaping for 

ASC. £0.3m has already been delivered due to non-real living wage inflation expected 
to be lower than the planned £0.5m estimate within the 2021/22 plan. 

 
6.2 In partnership with commissioners the provider of ASC is set to undertake a savings 

programme to reduce the systems costs in order to meet the proposed plan for 
2021/22. Progress has been made on identifying schemes to deliver savings and a 
more detailed update will be provide on this in the next report to the committee in 
September. 

 
6.3 COVID impacted the localities savings programme and whilst there continued to be 

progress, inevitable it was much slower. The programme has now been relaunched 
with significant focus on it helping the system achieve sustainable finances. An 
update on the programme will be presented at the September meeting. 

  

Page 34



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

7. Recommendations 
 
7.1 The Adults’ Commissioning Committee (ACC) is asked to: 
 

 Note the Adults’ integrated fund plan for 2021/22 

 Note the financial position for 2021/22 

 Note the risks to the Adults’ integrated fund for 2021/22 

 Note the savings programme for 2021/22 to deliver a balanced plan 
 
David Warhurst 
Interim Chief Financial Officer, Salford CCG 
  

Page 35



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

Appendix 1: Adults Integrated Fund - Contributions 2021/22 

 
 
  

Page 36



 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

Appendix 2: Adults’ Integrated Fund Expenditure Plan for 2021/22 

 
 
 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
  
 

1 
 

Adult Commissioning Committee 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO 6 
 
Item for Decision/Assurance/Information (Please underline and bold)   
 
DATE OF MEETING 14 JULY 2021 
 

Report of: 
 

Karen Proctor/Charlotte Ramsden 

Date of Paper: 
 

30 June 2021 

Subject: 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

In case of query  
Please contact: 
 

Judd Skelton Judd.Skelton@salford.gov.uk  
Harry Golby harry.golby@nhs.net  

Purpose of Paper: 
 
This paper provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast of developments and progress. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Judd.Skelton@salford.gov.uk
mailto:harry.golby@nhs.net


 
  
 

2 
 

Further explanatory information required 
 

 
HOW WILL THIS BENEFIT THE 
HEALTH AND WELL BEING OF 
SALFORD RESIDENTS OR THE 
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP? 
 

This paper provides an overview of a 
number of key or emerging areas of 
commissioning and provision relating to 
adult health and care to ensure Adult 
Commissioning Committee are kept abreast 
of developments and progress. 

 
WHAT RISKS MAY ARISE AS A 
RESULT OF THIS PAPER?  HOW 
CAN THEY BE MITIGATED? 
  

N/A 

 
WHAT EQUALITY-RELATED 
RISKS MAY ARISE AS A RESULT 
OF THIS PAPER?  HOW WILL 
THESE BE MITIGATED? 
 

N/A 

 
DOES THIS PAPER HELP 
ADDRESS ANY EXISTING HIGH 
OR EXTREME RISKS FACING 
THE ORGANISATION?  IF SO 
WHAT ARE THEY AND HOW 
DOES THIS PAPER REDUCE 
THEM? 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE DESCRIBE ANY 
POSSIBLE CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST ASSOCIATED WITH 
THIS PAPER. 
 

N/A 

 
PLEASE IDENTIFY ANY 
CURRENT SERVICES OR ROLES 
THAT MAY BE AFFECTED BY 
ISSUES WITHIN THIS PAPER: 
 

N/A 

Footnote: 
 
Members of – Adults’ Commissioning Committee will read all papers thoroughly.  Once 
papers are distributed no amendments are possible.  

Page 40



 
   

 
 

3 
 

Document Development 

 

Process Yes No 
Not 

Applicable 

Comments and Date 
(i.e. presentation, verbal, 

actual report) 
Outcome 

Public Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Clinical Engagement 

(Please detail the method  ie survey, 
event, consultation) 

  X   

Has ‘due regard’ been given to Equality 
Analysis (EA) of any adverse impacts? 
(Please detail outcomes, including risks 
and how these will be managed)  

  X   

Legal Advice Sought   X   

Presented to any other groups or 
committees, including Partnership Groups 

(Please specify in comments) 

  X   

 
Note: Please ensure that it is clear in the comments and date column how and when particular stakeholders were involved in this work 
and ensure there is clarity in the outcome column showing what the key message or decision was from that group and whether 
amendments were requested about a particular part of the work.

P
age 41



 

4 
 

 
 

Adult Commissioning Report 

 
1.  Executive Summary 

   

 
This report provides an overview of a number of key or emerging areas of commissioning 
and provision relating to adult health and care to ensure Adult Commissioning Committee 
are kept abreast of developments. 
 
Items in this month’s report include: 

 Additional capacity in Community Mental Health Teams 

 Urology Services Reconfiguration Delivery Model 

 Review of Greater Manchester Assisted Conception and Fertility Services 

 Approval of the Emergency Primary Integrated Care (EPiC 24) Business Case 

 Listening Lounge 
 

 

2.   Additional capacity in Community Mental Health Teams 

 
In 20/21 Salford CCG agreed a number of areas of investment with Greater Manchester 
Mental Health NHS Trust (GMMH) to enable Salford to meet its Mental Health Investment 
Standard (MHIS). One of the areas identified for investment was titled ‘Community Mental 
Health Teams (CMHTs) Bolster & Sustain’, which recognised  the increased capacity 
required in CMHTs to meet changing and increased demand and to support the NHS Long 
Term plan priority around transformation of community mental health and the development 
of ‘new and integrated models of primary and community mental health care’ by 2023/24. .  
Recurrent agreement of £332K was then approved at Adult Commissioning Committee in 
November 2020. 
 
Following planning discussions with GMMH the following staffing model has been proposed: 
 

a) 2.00 WTE Band 6 Approved Mental Health Practitioners (AMHP) 

Approved Mental Health Practitioners (AMHPs) are trained to implement elements of the 
Mental Health Act 1983, including the coordination of assessment and admission to hospital 
in a timely and appropriate manner.    

 
The decision to fund 2.0 WTE AMHPs had previously been agreed as part of the Improved 
Better Care Fund (iBCF) business case in 2017 which funded a range of adult social care 
posts and initiatives until 2020.  It was anticipated in 2017 that by 2020 a long term funding 
agreement regarding adult social care would have been agreed, however this has not been 
the case. 
 
Recognising the need for these posts and the statutory responsibilities they fulfil  in relation 
to the Mental Health Act 1983 ( and also in relation to  the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and 
Care Act 2014), it has been agreed  that these posts would be recurrently funded from the 
MHIS ‘CMHT Bolster and Sustain’ allocation. 

Page 42



 

5 
 

 
b) 3.00 WTE Band 7 Dual Diagnosis Practitioners (DDP) 

Research shows that mental health problems are experienced by the majority of drug (70%) 
and alcohol (86%) users in community substance misuse treatment. Death by suicide is also 
common, with a history of alcohol or drug use being recorded in 54% of all suicides in people 
experiencing mental health problems. Other evidence tells us that people with co-occurring 
conditions have a heightened risk of other health problems and early death. We also know 
that in spite of the shared responsibility that NHS and local authority commissioners have to 
provide treatment, care and support, people with co-occurring conditions are often excluded 
from services. (Better Care for People with co-occurring mental health and alcohol/drug use 
conditions, 2017). 
 
It has been established that there is a gap in secondary mental health services for those 
service users experiencing mental health issues in conjunction with substance misuse.  The 
creation of these posts will provide senior consultation on co-occurring conditions throughout 
the CMHT, care coordinate complex cases and develop meaningful links with Substance 
Misuse Services (SMS). 
 
Throughout the co-production of the Living Well model, substance misuse has emerged as a 
significant theme.  As we transform our community mental health offer and widen our 
eligibility for support we will see more people presenting with dual diagnosis who may 
previously not have met thresholds for care. 

Furthermore a thematic analysis has been undertaken of referrals to the Safeguarding Adult 
Review Panel and an increase in referrals where there was co-occurring mental ill health 
and substance misuse was noted.   

Consequently increasing capacity to meet demand and need in this area is a priority.  

c) 3.00 WTE Band 2 Receptionists 
 
As the Adult CMHTs have grown with increased activity levels so have the number of calls 
coming into the teams.  Each team receives 100-150 calls per day on average.  Many of 
these calls go unanswered and are forwarded to voicemail.  This has led to recurrent 
complaints from service users and other service providers, e.g. General Practitioners, that 
they cannot get through to speak to anyone. 
 
Various changes have been made to try and improve the situation with limited levels of 
success.  The issue at hand is the sheer volume of calls hence the proposal to add an 
additional receptionist to each team. 
 
With the remodelling of community mental health and the development of the Living Well 
model, the importance of having a quick and effective response to enquiries is  vital and 
consequently an  additional member of  reception staff in each CMHT will improve 
communication, response and experience for service users  and wider colleagues.    
 
Adult commissioning committee is asked to note how the capacity of CMHTs is planned to 
increase  
 
 

Page 43



 

6 
 

3. Urology Services Reconfiguration Delivery Model 

 
In response to significant service resilience issues and unwarranted variation in Urology 
services within Greater Manchester (GM) the GM Improving Specialist Care (ISC) 
programme developed a GM-wide Model of Care for Benign Urology, which was 
subsequently endorsed by the GM Joint Commissioning Board. 
 
Colleagues from Bury, Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale, Oldham and Salford CCGs and 
the Northern Care Alliance have since been working jointly on the development of a pan-
locality delivery model to improve Urology services which is fully aligned with the GM ISC 
Model of Care. This is overseen by a Programme Board, jointly chaired by two of the CCG 
Chief Clinical Officers, including Dr Tom Tasker. 
 
A proposed model has now been developed which supports the delivery of a single urology 
service across Bury, Rochdale, Oldham and Salford. It is designed to deliver high quality and 
accessible services for all patients addressing risks to service sustainability, unwarranted 
variation in both access and outcomes, the ability to meet performance requirements and the 
future development of the urological workforce. 
 
The delivery model would see the establishment of a hub-and spoke model – connecting 
Salford Royal Hospital (SRH) and Royal Oldham Hospital (ROH) as inpatient hubs to 
Fairfield General Hospital (FGH) and Rochdale Infirmary (RI) respectively as locality-based 
spokes, with most outpatient and diagnostic care delivered through locality-based Urology 
Investigation Units at each of the sites.  
 
There would be minimal impact on where Salford patients receive their treatment under the 
proposed delivery model; the vast majority of patients already receive their urology care at 
SRH and they will continue to do so. Patients and GPs would, of course, continue to be able 
to choose other providers within GM. 
 
As part of the GM Model of Care there will likely be an impact on patients who currently 
attend North Manchester General Hospital (NMGH) for inpatient Urology services. This site 
is expected to become a spoke in the future, with inpatient activity undertaken at one of 
designated GM hub sites (of which there are anticipated to be five), with most inpatient 
activity anticipated to flow to ROH, SRH or Manchester Royal Infirmary depending on 
catchment areas.  
 
2019/20 data on elective episodes from each CCG area undertaken shows us that very few 
Salford patients currently have their inpatient urology care at NMGH; patients impacted by 
this part of the GM Model of Care are mainly from Bury, Rochdale and Oldham areas. 
 
If approved, a phased implementation of the pan-locality delivery model is proposed, 
particularly recognising the dependency on estate developments (i.e. the delivery of the 
agreed capital development on the ROH site and the redevelopment of NMGH site). 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the described pan-locality delivery model 
and a phased approach to mobilisation overseen by the Programme Board. 
 
 

Page 44



 

7 
 

4. Review of Greater Manchester Assisted Conception and Fertility Services 

 
A review of Greater Manchester Assisted Conception and Fertility Services is underway. 
 
Salford commissions assisted conception services and fertility services in partnership with 
other CCGs across Greater Manchester.  Access to assisted conception is in line with a 
CCG policy, based on a Greater Manchester framework, and a locally agreed clinical 
pathway (GP -> Salford Royal -> specialist service).   Residents of Salford are currently able 
to choose between 3 specialist providers – Manchester NHS Foundation Trust (i.e. St Mary’s 
Hospital), Care Fertility and Create Fertility.  The contracts are held by other Greater 
Manchester CCGs with Salford named as an associate commissioner.  
 
The review Oversight Group is made up of partner organisations who provide NHS funded 
care and commissioners are working together to review and develop potential solutions.  
The role of the Oversight Group is to: 

 review all NHS funded Assisted Conception and Fertility Services from referral to 
treatment  

 consider feedback from staff, patient and public engagement exercise 

 inform potential solutions that will improve and sustain services now and in the future 

 ensure that the NHS commissions the most effective service from referral to treatment  

 make the best use of the existing buildings and facilities across Greater Manchester  
 
The public engagement phase of this review is now underway.  A range of engagement 
activity will be undertaken including focus groups with various communities and groups of 
interest.  An on-line survey will also be running between 28 May and 27 July, the survey has 
been publicised via various routes including all Greater Manchester CCG websites, the link 
is here https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/get-involved/surveys-consultations/.  The engagement 
exercise is a listening exercise and not a formal public consultation.     
 
Alongside the engagement exercise a clinical workshop will be held early July where 
clinicians and other partner representatives will be having a pathway discussion.  An all-
partner workshop is also planned for the end of July to: 

 Feedback on the pathway discussion 

 Feedback findings from patient and public engagement activity  

 Feedback findings from staff providing the services across Greater Manchester 

 Consider evaluation questions 

 Consider how possible options can be developed 

 Plan options development session (including patient representation) 
 
Officers from the finance, service improvement and engagement teams of Salford CCG are 
involved in the review.   
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the review is ongoing and that updates will 
be reported to the committee as the review progresses. 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

https://www.gmhsc.org.uk/get-involved/surveys-consultations/


 

8 
 

5. Approval of the Emergency Primary Integrated Care (EPiC 24) Business 
 Case 

  
Primary Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC) received the EPiC 24 Business Case at its 
May meeting; the EPiC 24 strategic model had already been signed off at the March 2021 
PCCC meeting following a consultation with various stakeholders including Adult 
Commissioning Committee.  
  
EPiC 24 is an integrated model which aligns urgent and unscheduled care services via a 
digital hub to ensure that the people of Salford benefit directly, by receiving the most 
appropriate support for their clinical needs. Wherever possible this is delivered in a 
community setting. 
 
Expected benefits of the EPiC 24 model to Salford patients and the system highlighted in the 

business case included: 

 Increased number of patients supported to self-care 

 Increased access to a variety of urgent emergency care pathways which now do not 
require a visit to an Emergency Department 

 Development of a highly skilled clinical team that understands the services available 
across Salford and how to access them 

 Development of a clinical team that supports different activities based on pressure 
which improves economies of scale 

 Support to primary care capacity 

 Improved safety through early access to senior clinical advice 

 Improved patient experience of accessing urgent care services 

 Clinical continuity for patients as vital patient information is shared 

 A connected platform that can flex to increase and support a variety of activities 
 

PCCC signed off the business case in full and approved the running of an EPiC 24 service 
on a pilot basis for two years until June 2023. A pilot was the preferred option due to the 
ongoing and everchanging challenging COVID environment which the health service 
providers are working in. It also allows for further evaluation and development of the model. 
 
Overall £3.7 million of funding was agreed for the first year of the model: however, this isn’t 
an additional cost to the system, with £2.9m of the proposed funding already within approved 
commissions for urgent and unscheduled primary care services. A further contribution was 
agreed from Salford Royal Foundation Trust of £0.5m in recognition of the direct benefit to 
the Trust and the holistic design of the service. Salford CCG contributed an additional 
£0.3m. This was in line with contribution being made by other CCGs across Greater 
Manchester for similar projects.  There is a potential saving in the second year associated 
with expecting staffing efficiencies of a longer commission, including a reduction in locum 
costs. 
 
It was agreed that there would be a comprehensive PCCC review of the EPiC 24 model every 
6 months to ensure the pilot is reaching its desired outcomes. 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the PCCC approval of the EPiC 24 
business case and the planned 6-month review of delivery against outcomes through PCCC.  
 

Page 46



 

9 
 

6. Listening Lounge 

 
In 20/21 Salford CCG agreed a number of areas of investment with Greater Manchester 
Mental Health NHS Trust (GMMH) to enable Salford to meet its Mental Health Investment 
Standard (MHIS). One of the areas identified for investment was titled ‘Crisis’, which 
recognised  the need to develop  alternative offers for people presenting in mental health 
crisis, which is a local, GM and NHS Long Term Plan priority.  Recurrent agreement of 
£600K  was then approved at Adult Commissioning Committee in November 2020. 
 
This allocation has been utilised to increase staffing in the Home Based Treatment Team 
(HBTT) to meet core fidelity and has also seen the development of two Crisis Beds at 
Hollybank. 
   
The next area of development for this Crisis MHIS investment is around creating a robust 
urgent care response for those service users who are in the community and in crisis, what in 
Salford we are calling our Listening Lounge.   
 
The model being developed in line with the Salford Living Well design process and the GM 
vision includes the  Listening Lounge being based at Hollybank which is situated 1 mile from 
Salford Royal Hospital on a main road.  Building work is planned to ensure it is fit for 
purpose and these capital works will be financed via the Living Well grant Salford CCG 
received via the Big Lottery Fund. 
 
The aim is to work with service users who would have normally attended the Salford Royal 
Emergency Department  operating  on a 24-hour, 7 days a week basis, with assessment 
slots available over a 24-hour period. The staffing resource will be provided by the HBTT, 
including the HBTT nighttime practitioner, who will be based at Hollybank rather than 
Meadowbrook, plus additional resource funded by the MHIS money.  
 
12 x B3 support workers will cover the Listening Lounge, 2 x Crisis Beds (also based at 
Hollybank), and Urgent Care Centre (ED streaming in MH Specialist Assessment Area within 
A&E) on a rotational basis.  This is in addition  to 1.0 WTE B7 Senior Practitioner and 2.6 
WTE B6 Nighttime Practitioners.  
 
This will provide  
 

 A seamless offer for service users 24/7 with no stop/start function.  

 Reassurance to service users who will need this service on multiple occasions that they 
receive the same service regardless of the time the crisis occurs. 

 Clarity for services who would refer in and ensure that they understand the pathway and 
do not need to consider the time they are referring to the Listening Lounge.  

 Economies of scale in locating the Listening Lounge and Crisis Beds in the same 
location with the existing HBTT nighttime practitioner at Hollybank/Listening Lounge out 
of hours therefore increasing the productivity for this post from existing resource. 

 A skilled team that has excellent knowledge of how to support this cohort of service 
users with working knowledge of GMMH processes and available community support. 

 Joint working with Living Well and the VCSE colleagues to enable people to get same 
day support in their locality.  

Page 47



 

10 
 

Key phases are as follows 
 

 August 2021:  Service users will be directed to the Listening Lounge at located at 
Hollybank via Mental Health Liaison Team  and HBTT. 

 October 2021:  Direct referrals from the GMMH Helpline, 111, and drop off from 
North West Ambulance Service (NWAS). 

 November 2021:  Additional  VCSE capacity via Start and MIND, utilising Recovery 
Workers and Peer Workers Monday – Friday, 9-5 (this is funded via GM Crisis 
monies for 3 years).  

 
The cost of the Listening Lounge is £358, 774.  This will see the full £600K allocated via MHIS 
that has been identified for Crisis with GMMH. 
 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note the development of Salford’s Listening 
Lounge 
 

7. Recommendations 

 
Adult Commissioning Committee is asked to note and discuss this overview of a number of 
key or emerging areas of commissioning and provision relating to adult health and care. 
 
Judd Skelton, Assistant Director - Integrated Commissioning 
Harry Golby, Deputy Director of Commissioning 

Page 48


	Agenda
	4 Draft Annual Plan for Integrated Commissioning 2021/22 - Karen Proctor / Emma Reid
	04 - Appendix 1 - 2021-22 Draft Annual Plan for ACC as at 02-07-21

	5 Finance Report - David Warhurst
	6 Adult Commissioning Report - Harry Golby / Judd Skelton

